
MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

OCTOBER 20, 2009
 

The Board convened in the Commissioners' Hearing Room, 6th Floor, Public Service Center, 
1300 Franklin Street, Vancouver, Washington. Commissioners Mielke, Stuart, and Boldt, Chair, 
present. 

9:30 A.M. 

VANCOUVER LIBRARY CAPITAL FACILITIES AREA BOARD MEETING 

[See Separate Minutes] 

10:00 A.M. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The Commissioners led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

1)	 Milada Allen thanked Commissioner Mielke for participating in their volunteer and 
partner recognition event held on October 9. She noted that this week was Make a 
Difference Week. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Discussion 
Item 3: Request from Transportation for approval of Ordinance to update the Traffic 
Impact Fee Technical Program Document to include the updated data from the most 
recent edition of the Institute of Traffic Engineers -Trip Generation Manual. 

Tahanni Essig, Department of Public Works, responded to Commissioner Mielke's 
request to further explain the changes. Ms. Essig said they would be updating the 
document based on the 8th Edition of the Trip Generation Manual, which takes data 
points and more information and characteristic changes into consideration. 

ACTION:	 There being no public comment, moved by Stuart to APPROVE consent agenda 
items 1 through 10. Commissioners Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion 
carried. 

PUBLIC HEARING - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS 

Item #1: CPZ2009-00006 Camas School District - The Camas School District is 
required by law to update its capital facilities plan (CFP) every two years. The plan 
projects revenues and numbers of students for a six year period. The School District has 
updated its CFP. It will be presented to the Planning Commission and the Board of 

Page 1 of 13 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

OCTOBER 20, 2009
 

County Commissioners for approval. The CFP is adopted by reference as part of the
 
Clark County Comprehensive Plan.
 
Department: Community Planning
 
Staff Contact: leffNiten
 

Staff Summary:
 
Mr. Niten presented the staff report. He stated that Camas was proposing a reduction in
 
both their multi- and single-family fees.
 

Comments from the public: 
None 

Item #2: CPZ2009-00007 Green Mountain School District - The Green Mountain
 
School District is required by law to update its capital facilities plan (CFP) every two
 
years. The plan projects revenues and numbers of students for a six year period. The
 
School District has updated its CFP. It will be presented to the Planning Commission and
 
the Board of County Commissioners for approval. The CFP is adopted by reference as
 
part of the Clark County Comprehensive Plan.
 
Department: Community Planning
 
Staff Contact: leffNiten
 

Staff Summary:
 
Mr. Niten stated that Green Mountain School District was proposing no change to the
 
fees.
 

Comments from the public: 
None 

Item #3: CPZ2009-00008 Hockinson School District The Hockinson School District is
 
required by law to update its capital facilities plan (CFP) every two years. The plan
 
projects revenues and numbers of students for a six year period. The School District has
 
updated its CFP. It will be presented to the Planning Commission and the Board of
 
County Commissioners for approval. The CFP is adopted by reference as part of the
 
Clark County Comprehensive Plan.
 
Department: Community Planning
 
Staff Contact: leffNiten
 

Staff Summary:
 
Mr. Niten stated that Hockinson School District was proposing a reduction in both their
 
multi- and single-family fees.
 

Page 2 of 13 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

OCTOBER 20, 2009
 

Comments from the public: 
None 

Item #4: CPZ2009-00009 La Center School District - The La Center School District is 
required by law to update its capital facilities plan (CFP) every two years. The plan 
projects revenues and numbers of students for a six year period. The School District has 
updated its CFP. It will be presented to the Planning Commission and Board of County 
Commissioners for approval. The CFP is adopted by reference as part of the Clark 
County Comprehensive Plan. 
Department: Community Planning 
Staff Contact: Jeff Niten 

Staff Summary: 
Mr. Niten stated that La Center School District was proposing a reduction in the multi­
family fee and a slight increase in the single-family residential impact fee. He said the 
Planning Commission heard the request on June 18, 2009 and was recommending 
approval by a 5-0 vote of the La Center School District Capital Facilities Plan (CFP). The 
proposed single-family impact was an increase of 1.4%. Niten said staff analysis has 
found that the La Center CFP has complied with all applicable criteria. 

Comments from the public: 
None 

Item #5: CPZ2009-00010 Washougal School District - The Washougal School
 
District is required by law to update its capital facilities plan (CFP) every two years. The
 
plan projects revenues and numbers of students for a six year period. The School District
 
has updated its CFP. It will be presented to the Planning Commission and Board of
 
County Commissioners for approval. The CFP is adopted by reference as part of the
 
Clark County Comprehensive Plan.
 
Department: Community Planning
 
Staff Contact: JeffNiten
 

Staff Summary:
 
Mr. Niten stated that Washougal School District was proposing a reduction in multi­

family and an increase in the single-family fee. The Planning Commission heard the
 
request on June 18, 2009 and was recommending approval by a 5-0 vote. The increase for
 
single-family impact fee was proposed at 9.7%. Staff analysis has found that the
 
applicable criteria were met.
 

Comments from the public: 
None 

Page 3 of 13 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

OCTOBER 20, 2009
 

Item #6: CPZ2009-00011 Vancouver School District - The Vancouver School District
 
is required by law to update its capital facilities plan (CFP) every two years. The plan
 
projects revenues and numbers of students for a six year period. The School District has
 
updated its CFP. It will be presented to the Planning Commission and Board of County
 
Commissioners for approval. The CFP is adopted by reference as part of the Clark
 
County Comprehensive Plan.
 
Department: Community Planning
 
Staff Contact: JeffNiten
 

Staff Summary:
 
Mr. Niten said Vancouver School District was proposing impact fee increases for both
 
single- and multi-family residences. The Planning Commission heard the request on June
 
18, 2009 and was recommending unanimous approval.
 

Discussion:
 
Commissioner Mielke said it was his understanding that a lot of the impact fees go to
 
modular buildings because schools are being under-built. He said if that's the case, he
 
would have trouble supporting some of the radical impact fees. He said he didn't think
 
they were experiencing radical growth in Vancouver.
 

Marty Snell, Director, Community Development, responded to Commissioner Boldt's
 
question regarding the resolution for school impact fees in terms of pushing the increase
 
to the point of sale and if that would affect these. He said he believed the answer was yes;
 
it did have some language for the Vancouver School District because they had not seen
 
the changes that the other district's had seen.
 

Chris Horne stated that all of this was based on the date the fees were fixed, which is
 
based on when they receive their preliminary plat approval. The ordinance would only
 
affect projects that had previously been given a fee and whose fee would be raised
 
because of the 3-year period. There was an exception for Vancouver because they were
 
set out and treated differently. New projects would always be subject to the new fees that
 
are in place when they receive their preliminary plat or site plan approval.
 

Snell added that they were not only looking at the School Impact Fee resolution that is
 
effective through this year, but also the Transportation and Park Impact Fee resolutions
 
and they would be bringing a recommendation to the board before the month's end.
 

Horne answered Commissioner Mielke's question regarding the term of impact fees,
 
stating that for Clark County the board adopted by ordinance a provision that the fees are
 
calculated at the time a project receives their preliminary approval and they are protected
 
from any increases for 3 years.
 

Page 4 of 13 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

OCTOBER 20, 2009
 

Comments from the public: 
I)	 Todd Horenstein, Assistant Superintendent of Vancouver School District, commented 

on the recent history for Vancouver School District and explained the request for a fee 
increase. Mr. Horenstein stated that their bond funds have been expended and they 
would not be receiving any additional state construction dollars. Without any other 
capital source for expansions, it would be necessary to rely on the school impact fee. 
As a result, the school board determined that it was time to request the maximum 
calculated fee be put into place. Horenstein replied to Commissioner Boldt's question 
as to what had changed from last time stating that the difference was primarily that 
prior to this year's plan they had additional and other funding in place where they 
could accommodate the need; however, they have completed that work and funding 
has gone away. He said they are requesting the maximum because they don't have any 
other offsetting revenue. Horenstein responded to Commissioner Mielke's questions 
about portables and estimated population forecast for the schools. 

Marty Snell, Director, Community Development, answered Commissioner Mile's 
question regarding county growth, referencing the chapter on schools in the 20-year 
Growth Plan that was adopted in 2007. He said Vancouver School District indicated 
that their enrollment in 2012-2013 would be just under 23,000 students, which 
reflects an approximate increase of 5% from 2006-2007. So the information 
Vancouver School District put forward is consistent with this Comprehensive Plan. 

2)	 Mamie Allen, Vancouver School District representative, responded to Commissioner 
Stuart's comment about the formula and that they were talking the bare bones amount 
a new student would cost to educate in the district-Ms. Allen said that was fair to 
say. 

Discussion: 
[Discussion continued regarding the formula/process] 

Commissioner Stuart said he understood that the number appeared to be a big increase, 
but in the grand scheme of things this was a small part of the money to educate their kids. 

Commissioner Mielke didn't think impact fees were meant to build new schools. He said 
they have a way to build schools through cutting of state timberland, which is there to 
help pay the state's portion, and also bonding by the community. He stated that any 
increase was not a good thing. 

Commissioner Boldt asked if there were any thoughts about what the city might do and if 
it had gone through the city's Planning Commission. 

Mr. Horenstein said the Planning Commission had approved the recommendation and it 
was scheduled to go before the city council in about a month. 

Page 5 of 13 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

OCTOBER 20, 2009
 

Comments from the public (continued): 
3)	 Marine Allen, Vancouver School District representative, explained the constitutional 

debt limit on the amount of bonds that a school district can issue and requiring 60% 
approval from the voters. She said in order to be eligible to build a new school to 
serve growth, a certain number of students have to be housed in portables to qualify 
for state matching funds. Ms. Allen stated that impact fees are an important tool to 
help fund a portion of those costs that are attributed by the new houses being built. 

4)	 Mike Bomar, Building Industry Association of Clark County, 103 E. 29th Street, 
Vancouver, commented that most builders don't mind paying impact fees; however, 
the fees are now reaching a level to which they can't sell homes. He said they have a 
policy with the association to encourage incremental increases in all fees and he felt 
that should be considered. Bomar felt fees should not be increased at this point and 
that everyone should work together to try and look at ways to reduce capital facilities 
costs, have the state pay their appropriate share in school construction, and continue 
to look at ways to improve education. 

[Discussion continued regarding what other jurisdictions do.] 

5)	 Jeff Wriston, 15700 NW 31 st Court, Vancouver, provided an example of what 
development and impact fees can amount to for a project-land cost is $14,000 per 
lot, construction estimate is $17,000 per lot, and the impact fees, county fees-fees in 
general-are upwards of $30,000, plus or minus, per lot. Builders say they need to be 
in the neighborhood of $55,000 a lot to get back to affordable housing. With median 
home prices as they currently are, there's no margin and that's why nothing is 
happening. He said the elephant on the back is impact fees and all the fees together, 
such as development fees. 

Discussion: 
Stuart said he would approve the recommendations of the school boards as is, using the 
formula amounts. He said if there was a desire to wait and make their action final until 
after [the cities], especially the City of Vancouver, have made their decisions there would 
consistency across the district. 

Mielke said he would feel better waiting and he said he still had numbers he wanted to 
look at to justify the increase. 

Boldt asked Chris Home if they could approve something contingent upon the city doing 
something or was there a timeline for which they needed to complete this. 

Chris Home, Prosecuting Attorney's Office, said he would be cautious about the board 
doing something contingent upon somebody else taking action. He said there was no 
problem with the board approving something and making it effective a particular date or 
approving it and scheduling the signing of the resolution for some date in the future. 

Page 6 of 13 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

OCTOBER 20, 2009
 

Niten said their ordinance was scheduled to be on consent December IS, but they could 
hold a quick hearing and he would provide two versions of the ordinance. 

ACTION:	 Moved by Stuart to CONTINUE the public hearing for CPZ2009-00011, Vancouver 
School District, to December 15,2009, at 10:00 a.m. in the Commissioners Hearing 
Room, 6th Floor, Public Service Center. Commissioners Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke 
voted aye. Motion carried. 

Stuart asked about making a motion to approve the other school districts. Boldt noted that 
the La Center and Washougal School Districts were changing, but overall [the fees] were 
down. 

ACTION:	 Moved by Stuart to APPROVE the following items as presented in the staff reports: 
CPZ2009-00006 Camas School District; CPZ2009-00007 Green Mountain School 
District; CPZ2009-00008 Hockinson School District; CPZ2009-00009 La Center 
School District; and CPZ2009-000 10 Washougal School District. Commissioners 
Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion carried. 

Item #7: CPZ2009-00029 Proposed amendments to Clark County Code regarding 
appeals of land use and other administrative decisions. Clark County proposes to 
amend ordinances throughout the Clark County Code that authorize the Board of County 
Commissioners to hear and decide appeals of decisions made by administrative officials, 
including decisions on land use permit applications. These amendments would give final 
appellate authority within County government to the hearings examiner, pursuant to 
Chapter 2.51 of the Clark County Code, and would establish a process for the hearings 
examiner to reconsider his or her decisions in limited circumstances. A hearings 
examiner's decision would be final, unless it was appealed to Superior Court. 
Department: Prosecuting Attorney's Office 
Staff Contacts: Chris Home, Prosecuting Attorney's Office; 

Marty Snell, Director, Community Development 

Staff Summary: 
Mr. Snell noted that the version of the amending ordinance provided to the board 
included the addition of Section 2.51.160 Reconsideration of Examiner's Decision, page 
4, Section 5. Also, under A.2 it talks about a fee; that the motion to reconsider would be 
accompanied by the applicable fee, except if the department brings something back to the 
Hearings Examiner, in which case there would be no fee. Snell further explained. 

Boldt stated that he didn't want a situation in which an applicant would have pay, but the 
county would not have to pay, to get to the same result. Snell pointed out that the county 
does pay if the Hearings Examiner is taking any time because he does charge them. 

Page 7 of 13 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

OCTOBER 20, 2009
 

[Discussion continued] 

Horne provided an example for impact fees in which the Hearings Examiner's decision 
contains the wrong fee. He said the question was whether the board wanted staff to be 
able to go back to the examiner and ask him to reconsider his decision. 

Boldt said he would be more comfortable if the board approved staffs request for 
reconsideration. 

Horne said that was actually what the Planning Commission recommended. He pointed 
out that there are time limits to consider, but otherwise it can be done. The only other 
determination the board had to make was motion to reconsider. He said somewhere in A­
2 the current language says the motion must be accompanied by the applicable fee, except 
no fee shall be charged to Community Development. Horne said the board wants to limit 
reconsideration by staff upon approval by the board and so in A-I, where it says ­
"including Clark County by and through Community Development," they could add the 
phrase "upon approval of the Board of County Commissioners." Horne asked ifit made 
sense that requests for reconsideration be at no fee because it would essentially be one 
hand paying back into the other. 

Stuart said the county was inevitably paying for the Hearings Examiner anyway. 

Horne said that change would be reflected in the final draft. He said the other 
determination the board needed to make was with regard to a fee for reconsideration, 
which doesn't currently exist. He said they could do it by hour or by a set fee. 

Boldt asked if they could say they shall pay for the reimbursement of the Hearings 
Examiner's time. 

Horne and Snell said they could do that. 

Comments from the public: 
1)	 Mike Bomar, Building Industry Association of Clark County, said he had met with 

members of the Responsible Growth Forum, who expressed concerns about the 
additional legal costs involved with technical appeals. He asked that staff keep him 
notified so that he can update the members. 

2)	 Jeff Wriston, Planning Commission member, commented that the Planning 
Commission generally had mixed feelings and he thought the two concerns that came 
across most strongly was a loss of legislative intent and the raise in costs in terms of 
people having to "lawyer up." They were also concerned that there didn't seem to be a 
lot of public outreach. He noted that there were two specific recommendations that 
had not been included in the ordinance: that there be a process for minor 
clarifications, errors, mistakes, ambiguities, scriveners errors to be remanded back to 

Page 8 of 13 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

OCTOBER 20, 2009
 

the Hearings Examiner without fee; and that the board approve any motion for a 
reconsideration generated by the county to the Hearings Examiner. 

Discussion: 
Stuart asked Mr. Home if they had any wordsmithing as far as how they might have a 
two-tiered system where reconsideration of new evidence would be charged and the other 
ones wouldn't. 

Home said there was no language, but they could say, "Errors that the examiner 
concludes are obvious will be at no fee." He further explained. 

Stuart referred to page 4 of their handout, 2.51.160A(3)(a) - "Procedural irregularity or 
error. .. " and said ifthey included "or scrivener's errors," it seemed that would be one that 
wouldn't have a fee. He asked Mr. Home to work on the language in "a" to be inclusive 
of the kinds of things that are just errors and that they just wouldn't charge for "a." 

Wriston reiterated that the Planning Commission was concerned that their information 
was not included in the board's packet. 

Home stated that this was initiated by the board and he was probably responsible for the 
change not being made. 

Wriston (not in capacity as Planning Commission member) asked the board to consider 
removing "b," "c" and "d." Also, he noted there were several references to timelines 
under the RCW under LUPA and he thought they could just reference the RCW because 
the timelines could change. 

Home said the board can have different timelines than the RCW, but they could certainly 
go to a timeframe that is consistent with it-that was a judgment call on behalf of the 
board. In terms of "b," "c" and "d," there was probably no problem with eliminating those 
as a basis for reconsideration; however, it was often the developers who want to argue 
those points. So in the same way that narrowing it makes it easier, there also may be 
situations where it hurts as much as it helps. 

[Discussion continued] 

Boldt asked if they could adopt this today despite the wrong information being sent out. 

Home clarified that the notice of public hearing was correct, as well as the ordinance that 
was considered by the Planning Commission. Mr. Home said the only thing sent in error 
was the ordinance that was sent from his office to the board. He said the board could 
approve it and then set it over for consent for signatures with the changes. He went over 
the language change under "a" - "Procedural irregularity, error or scrivener's error for 
which no fee would be charged." 

Page 9 of 13 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

OCTOBER 20, 2009
 

Wriston added the word "ambiguity" and further explained. 

Stuart suggested adding "clarification" to the language to read - "Procedural irregularity, 
error, clarification, or scrivener's error for which no fee would be charged." 

There was agreement on the change. 

ACTION: Moved by Stuart to AMEND CPZ2009-00029, under 2.51.160 Reconsideration of 
examiner's decision, A(l) Time for Filing; "Any party of record to a proceeding 
before the hearings examiner, including Clark County by and through its community 
development department. .. ," to add, " ... upon approval of the Board of County 
Commissioners, may file with the responsible official. .. ," and so on with the existing 
language before them. Commissioners Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion 
carried. 

ACTION: Moved by Stuart to AMEND CPZ2009-00029, under 2.51.160 Reconsideration of 
examiner's decision, A(3)(a), to read - "Procedural irregularity, error, clarification, 
or scrivener's error, for which no fee will be charged." Commissioners Boldt, Stuart, 
and Mielke voted aye. Motion carried. 

ACTION: Moved by Stuart to AMEND CPZ2009-00029, Table 6.1 lOA.010 Preliminary Plan 
Review Fees, to add Section IB "Reconsideration by the Hearings Examiner," and 
under Fee add, "Reimburse County at hourly rate of Examiner." 

Home clarified the motion. 

Commissioners Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion carried. 

ACTION: Moved by Stuart to APPROVE CPZ2009-00029, as amended. Commissioners 
Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion carried. 

Item #9: CPZ2009-00002 Pine Tree The property owners are seeking to change the 
Comprehensive Plan and zoning designation for parcels 145766-000 and 145815-000 (2.4 
acres) from Urban Medium with OR-18 zoning to Community Commercial with C-3 
zoning, located at the NE comer ofNE 94th Street and Hazel Dell Avenue. 
Department: Community Planning 
Staff Contact: leffNiten 

Staff Summary: 
Mr. Niten stated that the Planning Commission heard the proposal on May 21, 2009 and 
recommended approval of the request to change the subject parcels from Urban Medium 
to Community Commercial by a 4-0 vote. The Three Creeks Special Planning Area 

Page 10 of 13 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

OCTOBER 20, 2009
 

Advisory Council heard the proposal on March 12,2009 and also unanimously 
recommended approval. He noted that the subject parcels are vacant, located at the NE 
comer of Hazel Dell Avenue and 94th Street. He said the site is undeveloped and to the 
north of the property there is an established high density residential building and 
manufactured home development; to the south is the existing Hazel Dell Towne Center, 
to the east they have the C-Tran Park and Ride, and to the west there is an existing single­
family home subdivision zoned RI-7.5. 

Comments from the public: 
1)	 Maridee Pabst, 500 East Broadway, Suite 400, commented on behalf of the applicant. 

She asked that the board approve the proposed amendment consistent with positive 
recommendations from staff, the Three Creeks Advisory Council, and Planning 
Commission. She said they would ask the board to approve an amendment to a rezone 
covenant and agreement that was adopted in 2005, explaining that the proposed 
change would revise the recitals to reflect the zoning. . 

Discussion:
 
Stuart commented that the area concerned him, but he would respect the votes of the
 
Planning Commission and Three Creeks Advisory Council. He said it was a bigger issue
 
in the Hazel Dell/Salmon Creek area and they needed to figure out how to revitalize, not
 
just in commercial, but a mix of uses.
 

ACTION:	 Moved by Stuart to APPROVE CPZ2009-00002 Pine Tree. Commissioners Boldt, 
Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion carried. 

Item #8: CPZ2009-00028 Proposed amendments to Clark County Capital Facilities 
Financial Plan (2007-2012) - Clark County proposes to amend the capital facilities 
financial plan to include improvements associated with the county's parks, new rail yard 
construction plans, and energy conservation and renewable energy projects across a wide 
range of county facilities (including a potential biomass power plant). 
Department: General Services 
Staff Contact: Mark McCauley 

Staff Summary: 
Mr. McCauley said the request was to add three county facilities to the Capital Facilities 
Plan: County Railroad, Tri-Mountain Golf Course; and a variety ofcounty buildings and 
sites. He said they are asking this for three reasons, the first being that they are talking 
about a six-year plan that began in 2007 and work has been done in that period already on 
each of the facilities. He further explained. The second reason is that they anticipate 
future work on each of the items. Thirdly, [putting them] in the Capital Facilities Plan 
makes them eligible for REET monies. 

Page 11 of 13 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

OCTOBER 20, 2009
 

Comments from the public: 
None
 

Discussion:
 
The Chair asked the board if they had any additional comments and/or a motion.
 

ACTION:	 Moved by Stuart to APPROVE CPZ2009-00028 Proposed amendments to Clark 
County Capital Facilities Financial Plan (2007-2012). Commissioners Boldt, Stuart, 
and Mielke voted aye. Motion carried. 

COMMISSIONER COMMUNICATIONS 

•	 Commissioner Stuart commented on the loss of county employee, Bill McConnell, 
who passed away over the weekend. He said he would be missed. 

Hearing adjourned 

2:00 P.M. PUBLIC BID OPENINGS 

Present at bid opening: Louise Richards, Board of Commissioners Office; Mike Westennan and 
Beth Balogh, General Services-Purchasing Department 

BID OPENING 2535 

Held a public hearing for Bid Opening 2535 - Annual UV Lamps to Process and 
Disinfect Wastewater. Mike Westennan, General Services-Purchasing, read bids and 
stated it was the Purchasing Department's intention to award Bid 2535 on October 27, 
2009 at 10:00 a.m. in the Commissioners hearing room, 6th floor, Public Service Center. 

BID OPENING 2536 

Held a public hearing for Bid Opening 2536 - Annual Automotive and Truck Filters. 
Mike Westennan, General Services-Purchasing, read bids and stated it was the 
Purchasing Department's intention to award Bid 2536 on October 27,2009 at 10:00 a.m. 
in the Commissioners hearing room, 6th floor, Public Service Center. 

Page 12 of 13 



MINUTES
 
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 

OCTOBER 20, 2009
 

Tom Mielke, Commissioner 

ALtkv 
Clerk of the Board 

rt 

Please Note: The Board of Commissioners' minutes are action minutes. Digital recordings can 
be provided upon request. In addition, the Commissioners' hearings are broadcast live on 
CVTV, cable channels 21 and 23, and are also videotaped and repeated several times 
(www.cvtv.org) 

Page 13 of 13 


